
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (3) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Thursday 23rd July, 2020 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 This will be a virtual meeting 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Jacqui Wilkinson (Chairman) 
Barbara Arzymanow 
Aicha Less 
 

 

 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
This will be a virtual meeting and members of the public can 
view the live broadcast by accessing the links on the 
council’s website. 

   

T
 

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Kisi Smith-Charlemagne, Senior Committee and 
Governance Officer. 
 
Email: kscharlemagne@westminster.gov.uk   
Tel: 07817054613 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please. 
 

AGENDA 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   HARD ROCK CAFÉ, CRITERION BUILDING, 25-229 
PICCADILLY, LONDON<, W1J 9HR 

(Pages 5 - 44) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Site 

Name 

and 

Address 

App 

Type 

Licensing Ref 

No. 

1. St James’s 

Ward / West 

End 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Hard 

Rock 

Café  

Criterion 

Building 

225-229 

Piccadilly 

London 

W1J 9HR 

New 

Premises 

Licence 

20/04144/LIPN 

 
 

 

2.   DIRTY BONES, GROUND FLOOR, 4 DENMAN STREET, 
LONDON, W1D 7HJ 

(Pages 45 - 82) 



 
 

 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Site 

Name 

and 

Address 

App 

Type 

Licensing Ref 

No. 

2. West End 

Ward/ West 

End 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Dirty 

Bones 

Ground 

Floor 

14 

Denman 

Street 

London 

W1D 7HJ 

Premises 

Licence 

Variation 

20/03768/LIPV 

 
 

 

3.   MR FOGG’S TAVERN, 58 ST MARTIN'S LANE, LONDON, 
WC2N 4EA 

(Pages 83 - 
152) 

 
App 

No 

Ward / 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Site 

Name 

and 

Address 

App 

Type 

Licensing Ref 

No. 

3. St James’s 

Ward/ West 

End 

Cumulative 

Impact Area 

Mr 

Fogg’s 

Tavern 

58 St 

Martin's 

Lane 

London 

WC2N 

4EA 

New 

Premises 

Licence 

20/04235/LIPN 

 

 

 
 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
17 July 2020 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the sub-
committee is advised of the following: 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from 7th January 2016. 
 
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 
 
CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES  
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2016)  
 
•   For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises: 

 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30. 

 
• For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises: 

 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30. 

 
•   For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
 

Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30 
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30. 

 



1 
 

Procedure for virtual hearings held under the Licensing Act 2003  

The purpose of this procedure is to clarify how the Licensing Sub-Committee (“the Sub-Committee”) 

will conduct virtual licensing hearings made under the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended) and for 

licensing applications under other regimes.  All hearings are conducted with due regard to the 

Council’s Constitution, relevant legislation and case law, regulations and guidance.  

Accessing virtual hearings 

Virtual Licensing Sub-Committee hearings will be held on Microsoft Teams as a live Teams event.  

Each application will be dealt with by a separate Teams meeting.  All applicants, responsible 

authorities and other persons (who have submitted a valid representation) (collectively called 

“Parties”) will be provided with a link to the meeting beforehand.  Only these parties will be able to 

participate in the hearing (together with their adviser) provided they have registered, in advance, 

with the Licensing Authority, as specified below.   A link for the general public to watch the meeting 

will be available on the Council’s website.   

 

Final Submissions before the Hearing  

 

The parties (or their representatives) should use their best endeavours to ensure that all of their 

final submissions have been made so as to be included in the Sub-Committee report (typically no 

later, than 5.pm, 5 working days before the Sub-Committee hearing).  This means by 5pm on the 

Thursday, the week before the Sub-Committee hearing is due to take place. Final submissions should 

set out the key points, policies and conditions that a party wishes the Sub-Committee to take 

account of in determining the application.   

Any final submissions that a party wishes to make, (that have not been submitted so as to have been 

included in the report),  must be submitted to the  Licensing Service by no later than 12 noon 3 

working days before the hearing is due to take place.  The Licensing email address is: 

Licensing@westminster.gov.uk. 
 

Rules during Licensing Hearings 

The following rules must be followed by all parties to ensure the virtual hearing can progress as 

successfully as possible: 

• All parties wishing to participate in the hearing must register their wish to participate in the 

hearing and provide their email addresses to the Licensing Service at 

Licensing@westminster.gov.uk  no later than 12 noon on the Monday before the 

Thursday hearing is scheduled to take place. 

• All parties should join the virtual hearing at least 15 minutes before the advertised start 

time to ensure they are ready to start at the advertised start time.  After the advertised start 

time has passed no registered parties will be allowed to join, except in exceptional 

circumstances, when permitted by the Chairman, as this could disrupt the meeting. 

• All parties must only address the hearing when invited to do so by the Chairman. 

• All parties must keep their microphones on mute unless they are speaking.  The Chairman 

has the ability to mute all parties’ microphones. 

page 1

Agenda Annex

mailto:Licensing@westminster.gov.uk
mailto:Licensing@westminster.gov.uk


2 
 

• If a party wishes to interject, they should put their name in the messaging field.  The 

chairman has the discretion to invite the party to make their comment at an appropriate 

stage in the hearing. 

• All parties are asked to keep their comments as succinct as possible. 

• If a party has a question for another party, this must be addressed to the Chairman who will 

have the discretion to ask the relevant party to respond. 

• Parties wishing to make suggestions as to the conditions that may be imposed in the event 

of the application being granted should do so by reference to the schedule of proposed 

conditions set out in the Conditions Schedule annexed to the committee papers.  In so 

doing, they should use the same numbering in that schedule. This is to ensure that there is 

ease of referencing the conditions by all the parties. 

• To ensure the smooth running of hearings, a time limit will be placed on each party’s 

submissions.  This time limit must be adhered to but the Chairman has the flexibility to 

amend the time limit when it is considered appropriate to do so. 

• When referring to the hearing papers, participants should give the page and paragraph 

number when appropriate.  

•  The Chairman has the discretion to amend these rules in any given case where they 

consider it is appropriate to do so. 

Procedure 

1. The Chairman will open the meeting and introduce the members of the Sub-Committee and the 

other officers attending with the members, including the legal adviser, policy adviser and 

committee officer. 

  

2. The Chairman will confirm the procedure that the hearing will follow.  

 

3. The Sub-Committee members and officers will be asked to declare any interests they may have 

and any other procedural business will be transacted. 

 

4. The presenting officer from the licensing service will introduce the application, giving a brief 

description of the application and introducing all the Parties in attendance for each application 

 

5. Each party who has registered to speak, will be invited to make their representations and will 

be allowed a maximum of 10 minutes each.  In order to ensure that the hearing is fair to all 

parties and is conducted in an orderly manner, the Chairman has the discretion to extend this 

time limit where it is appropriate for the determination of the application.   

 

6. Parties will normally speak in the following order, (the order may change for other types of 

licensing applications):  

a. The applicant  

b. Responsible authorities  

c. Other persons 

 

7. The Chairman has the right to grant each party the opportunity to ask questions of each other 

for the purposes of clarification only where it is appropriate to do so.  The Sub-Committee 

members will then be able to ask questions of the parties. 

 

page 2



3 
 

8. The legal adviser and/or policy officer may ask questions of the parties as they consider 

appropriate, including in relation to the conditions which should be attached to the application 

if the Sub-Committee is minded to grant the application. 

 

9. Each party will have an opportunity to make a short closing submission each (not introducing 

any new evidence or case law) of no more than 5 minutes each, in the following order:  

a. Responsible authorities 

b. Other persons  

c. The applicant  

 

10. The Chairman shall then close the meeting and all parties will leave the meeting. A Decision will 

not be announced at the end of the hearing unless there is a legal requirement to do so. 

 

11.  The Sub-Committee will deliberate in closed session and all parties will be advised of the 

outcome in a written Summary Decision.  Unless otherwise required or permitted by 

Regulations, summary decisions will be made within a period of five working days of the last 

day of the hearing. The written summary of the decision (“Summary Decision”) will be sent to 

all the parties as soon as possible after the Decision has been made. The full Decision, setting 

out the reasons for the Decision, (Formal Notification) will be sent to the parties as soon as 

possible thereafter.  The time limit for appealing will not commence until the Formal 

Notification has been sent to the parties. 

 

Dated 15 April 2020     

page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 

   

Date:  23 July 2020 

   

Licensing Ref No:  20/04144/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Hard Rock Café  
Criterion Building 
225-229 Piccadilly 
London 
W1J 9HR 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  St James's 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Michelle Steward 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: msteward1@westminster.gov.uk 

 

 

  

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 5

Agenda Item 1



1. Application 
 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 22 May 2020 

Applicant: Hard Rock Cafe (UK) Limited 

Premises: Hard Rock Café  

Premises address: Criterion Building 
225-229 Piccadilly 
London 
W1J 9HR 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End 

Premises description: 
 

The premises currently operates as a restaurant under 
number 19/05762/LIPDPS: 
 
This application is for a new premises to permit the following: 
 

• permit 65 patrons to consume alcohol in the bar area 
without having to take a table meal in the restaurant; 

 

• reduce the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol in the 
bar area from 00.30 Sunday to Thursday and 01.30 
Friday and Saturday (22.30 on Sunday, 23.00 Monday 
to Thursday and midnight Friday and Saturday); and 

 

• to limit the number of patrons being permitted to 
queue to 40 persons. 

 
The applicant sought pre-application advice from 
Environmental Health and should the new licence be granted 
the applicant has confirmed that the licence  
Formal pre-application advice was sought from Mr Dave 
Nevitt of Environmental Health and, if the new application is 
granted the applicant has confirmed that the licence 
numbered 19/05762/LIPDPS will be surrendered. 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises has been licensed since 2017 and a copy of the 
current premises licence 19/05762/LIPDPS can be seen at 
Appendix 3 of this report together with the full licence history. 

Applicant submissions: The applicant provided a Dispersal Policy which can be seen 
at Appendix 2 of this report. 

 
  

page 6



 
1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 

 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
Only 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 02:00 02:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve until the 
start of permitted hours on New Years day. 

 

Live and Recorded Music: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
Only 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 02:00 02:00 01:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve until the 
start of permitted hours on New Years day. 

 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Indoors 
Only 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 00:30 00:30 00:30 00:30 01:30 01:30 00:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve until the 
start of permitted hours on New Years day. 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 

End: 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 02:30 02:30 01:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

From the end of permitted hours on New Years Eve until the 
start of permitted hours on New Years day. 

 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn 16 June 2020) 

Representative:  PC Adam Deweltz 

Received:  
 

1 June 2020 

 With reference to the above, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a 
Responsible Authority, are making a representation against this application.  
 

page 7



The venue is situated within the Cumulative Impact Area. It is our belief that if granted the 
application could undermine the Licensing Objectives in relation to The Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder.  
 
I have been through the operating schedule and I am satisfied that the conditions contained 
will assist the operators in promoting the licensing objectives. However, I would like following 
condition agreed. 65 people drinking in the basement bar area without food (table meal), 
could cause issues relating to crime and disorder and obtaining evidence is paramount for 
any Police investigation. 
 
1) At least 2 SIA door supervisors on duty at the premises shall be equipped with Body 
Worn Video, capable of recording audio and video in any light condition as per the minimum 
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team.  All recordings shall be stored for a 
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made 
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the 
preceding 31 day period. BWV must be activated at an early stage during any incident 
involving conflict. 
 
On the 16 June 2020, the applicant agreed for the above condition to be added to the 
operating schedule and the Metropolitan Police Service withdrew their representation. 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Service  

Representative: Mr Dave Nevitt  
 

Received: 
 

17 June 2020 

I wish to make Representations on the following grounds: 
 
Representation is made in relation to the application, as the proposals are likely to increase the 
risk of Public Nuisance. 
 
The premises is located in the West End Cumulative Impact Area. 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority  

Representative: Karyn Abbott 
 

Received: 
 

18 June 2020 

I write in relation to the application submitted for a new premises licence for Criterion Building, 
225-229 Piccadilly London, W1J 9HR. 
 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under 
the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your 
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how 
the premises would promote the four Licensing Objectives:  
 
• Public Nuisance 
• Prevention of Crime & Disorder 
• Public Safety 
• Protection of children from harm 
 
The application seeks the following:  
• Live Music, Recorded Music – Indoors  
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 01:00 
Friday to Saturday 10:00 to 02:00 

page 8



 
Non Standard Timings:  
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 
Year’s Day. 
 
• Late Night Refreshment Indoors  
Sunday to Thursday 23:00 to 01:00 
Friday to Saturday 23:00 to 02:00 
 
Non Standard Timings:  
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 
Year’s Day. 
 
• Supply of Alcohol On Premises 
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 00:30 
Friday to Saturday 10:00 to 01:30 
 
Non Standard Timings:  
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 
Year’s Day. 
 
• Opening Hours to Public 
Sunday to Thursday 10:00 to 01:30 
Friday to Saturday 10:00 to 02:00 
 
Non Standard Timings:  
From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New 
Year’s Day. 
 
The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area and as such various 
policy points must be considered, namely CIP1, HRS1, PB2 and RNT2.  
 
The Licensing Authority notes that the premises are currently licensed (19/05762/LIPDPS) and 
the applicant has applied for a new application with the same hours. As such, the operating 
hours applied for licensable activities currently fall outside of Westminster’s core hours under 
HRS1 Policy. 
 
The Licensing Authority note that the applicant has proposed on the plans a green hatched 
area in the Basement. As part of the application, the applicant proposed the following condition:  
 
Notwithstanding the condition below (MC66 restaurant condition), alcohol may be supplied and 
consumed in the basement bar area (designated on the plan in green hatching) by up to a 
maximum of 65 persons at any one time from 10:00 to midnight on Friday and Saturday, and 
from 10:00 to 23:00hrs on Monday to Thursday, and 10:00 to 22:30hrs on Sunday.”  
 
In paragraph 2.5.3 the policy states ‘The Council is particularly concerned that restaurant 
premises in the cumulative impact areas do not, even in part, come to operate as bars and 
particularly not as “vertical drinking” premises where customers consume alcohol standing 
throughout the evening. The council, however, is not minded to relax conditions for restaurants 
where alcohol may only be consumed by persons as an ancillary to their substantial table meal.  
 
Within the current premises licence the applicant has the below condition which only allows a 
maximum of 42 persons with the alcohol supplied prior or post to a meal.  
 

page 9



Notwithstanding condition 37, alcohol may be supplied and consumed immediately prior or post 
their meal at the premises in the bar area (designated on the plan), by up to a maximum at any 
one time, of 42 persons. 
 
The new application proposes a maximum of 65 persons and there is no ancillary nature for 
the alcohol. The Licensing Authority would like the applicant to provide further submissions as 
to how the 65 persons with no ancillary nature to a meal will not add to cumulative impact in 
the West End cumulative impact area.   
 
The Licensing Authority would also like the applicant to provide further submissions as to how 
the green hatched area is to be operated and controlled, i.e. will the proposed area operate by 
way of waiter/waitress service, be seated or as a bar with vertical drinking?  
 
The green hatched area of the application currently falls within Westminster’s PB2 Policy. In 
paragraph 2.5.23 the Licensing Authority considers that the grant of new licences for pubs and 
bars in the Cumulative Impact Areas should be limited to exceptional circumstances.  
 
The Licensing Authority notes that the applicant has proposed condition 27 below of the 
operating schedule which is model condition 66 this will bring the rest of the basement that’s 
not in the green hatched area in line with Westminster’s RNT2 Policy. 
 
27. The licensed premises in the basement shall only operate as a restaurant:  
 
(i) in which customers are shown to their table,  
(ii) Where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  
(iii) Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are  prepared on the premises 
and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery,  
(iv) Which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption,  
(v) Which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23:00, and  
(vi) Where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by persons 
who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there, and provided 
always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals.  
 
The Licensing Authority would like further submission as to why the applicant has proposed 
condition 16 below as the application is for ‘on sales’ and there is no outside area within the 
licence demise? 
 
16. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22:00 each day.   
 
As previously mentioned the premises currently benefits from a separate premises licence 
(19/05762/LIPDPS). The Licensing Authority note the applicant has proposed to surrender this 
licence and would propose the applicant consider model condition 62 as follows;  
 
1. No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until premises 19/05762/LIPDPS (or 
such other number subsequently issued for the premises) has been surrendered [and is 
incapable of resurrection]. 
 
The Licensing Authority would like confirmation whether the applicant is agreeable to the above 
proposed conditions to be able to assess any further relevant policy considerations.  
 
The Licensing Authority encourages the applicant to provide further submissions as to how the 
premises will not add to cumulative impact in the West End cumulative impact area, in 
accordance with policy CIP1.  
 

page 10



The Licensing Authority looks forward to receiving further submissions from the applicant in 
due course. 
 
Please accept this as a formal representation.  

3. Policy & Guidance 
 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy CIP1 applies: (i) It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food premises, 
and premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than 
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy 
HRS1. 
 
(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must 
demonstrate that they will not add to cumulative impact in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas. 

Policy HRS1 applies: (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this 
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to 
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in 
this policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other 
relevant policies.  
 
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises: 
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 
 
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the 
premises: 
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30 
 
For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 
Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30 
Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight 
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight 
Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30 

Policy PB2 applies: It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary hours 
within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

Policy RNT2 applies: Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this 
Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, 
PS1, PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they will 
not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact Areas. 

 
  

page 11



 
4. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Premises Licence and history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Michelle Steward 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: msteward1@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7th January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn) 1 June 2020 

5 Environmental Health Service 17 June 2020 

6 Licensing Authority  18 June 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 12



 
Premises Plans          Appendix 1 
 
Basement Plan  

  

page 13



Ground Floor  
 
 
 

    

page 14



Applicant Supporting Documents        Appendix 2 
 
 

  

page 15



  

page 16



  

page 17



  

page 18



  

page 19



  

page 20



Premises History         Appendix 3 
 

Current Premises Licence  
 

 

City of Westminster 
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part A 

WARD: St James's 
UPRN: 010033548628 

Premises licence 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
19/05762/LIPDPS 

 

Original Reference:  
 

 

17/04470/LIPN 

 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Hard Rock Cafe 
Criterion Building 
225-229 Piccadilly 
London 
W1J 9HR 
 

Telephone Number: Not Supplied 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Performance of Live Music 
 Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 01:00  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00  
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
 Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 01:00  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00  
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Sunday to Thursday: 23:00 to 01:00  
 Friday to Saturday: 23:00 to 02:00  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 00:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30  
 

page 21



Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on new years eve until the start of permitted 
hours of new years day. 
 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 01:30 
Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 02:30 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises. 
 

 
Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises 
licence: 
 
Hard Rock Cafe (UK) Limited 
Cannon Place 
78 Cannon Street 
London 
EC4N 6AF 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
 
01924059 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises 
licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name: Desmond Addis 
 
Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address details of a 
designated premises supervisor. 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol: 
 
Licence Number: H05448 
Licensing Authority: London Borough Of Hounslow 
 

 
 
 
Date:   1 July 2019 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Angela Seaward on behalf of the Director - Public Protection 
and Licensing. 

page 22



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in 

respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not 

hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a 

personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, 

arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 

(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following 
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the 
sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 

encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted 
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which 
carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward 

the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner 
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 

vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that 

other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a disability). 
 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers 

where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age 

verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that 

the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification 
policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 

years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, 

before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and 

either— 

page 23



 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 

premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance 

ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the 

following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is 

available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to 

be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence in respect 
of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 or over who is 
authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  For premises with a club 
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which 
enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the 

premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
 

P = D+(DxV) 
 

Where - 
  

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value 

added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 

(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a 
premises licence - 

   
(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    alcohol under 

such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club 
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a 
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added 

Tax Act 1994. 

page 24



 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this paragraph) not 

be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price 
actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) 

above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day 
("the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of 
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second 
day. 

 

 
9. All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or against outbreaks 

of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be licensed by the Security Industry 
Authority. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

page 25



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
 
None. 

page 26



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 
10. The Premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 

requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered 
enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system 
shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times 
when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 
31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately 
upon the request of police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period. 

 
11. A staff member from the Premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 

shall be on the Premises at all times when the Premises is open. This staff member must be able 
to provide to Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the 
absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
12. There shall be a personal licence holder on duty on the premises at all times when the Premises 

are authorised to sell alcohol. 
 
13. A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises from 18:00 until 

close, and a minimum of 4 door supervisors shall be on duty from 22:00.  
 
14. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined by and 

to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental Health Service, so as to ensure 
that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses. The operational panel of the 
noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of officers from the 
Environmental Health Service and access shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises 
Licence holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with the Environmental 
Health Services. No alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should be effected 
without prior knowledge of an authorised Officer of the Environmental Health Service. No 
additional sound generating equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed 
through the sound limiter device. 

 
15. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall emanate from 

the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise 
to a nuisance. 

 
16. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22:00 each day. 
 
17. There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the premises after 01.00 except for patrons 

permitted to temporarily leave the premises to smoke. 
 
18. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of local 

residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
19. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons to 

respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly. 
 
20. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at all times 

the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to residents and 
businesses in the vicinity and advertised near the entrance doors of the premises in letters of at 
least two inches tall. 

 
21. There shall be no self-service of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures less than 5.5% 

ABV.  
 
22. At all times there shall be promotion of non-alcoholic drinks.  
 
23. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or placed in 

outside areas between 23:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day. 
 

page 27



24. The number of persons permitted in the licensed premises at any one time (including staff) shall 
not exceed 419 persons, reducing to 300 persons at midnight and 200 persons at 01:00 hours. 

 
25. The last entry time to the premises on any given night shall be at least one hour before it closes. 
 
26. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in  

all parts of  the  premises  where  alcohol  is  sold  or  supplied  for  consumption  on  the 
premises. 

 
27. Waiter or waitress service shall always be available in the licensed Premises. 
 
 
28. There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at all times. 
 
 
29. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 

the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 

 
30. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include the date 

and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the sale. The 
record shall be available for inspection at the Premises by the police or an authorised officer of 
the City Council at all times whilst the Premises is open. 

 
31. An incident log shall be kept at the Premises, and made available on request to an authorised 

officer of the City Council or the police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and 
will record the following: 

a) all crimes reported to the venue; 
b) all ejections of patrons; 
c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder; 
d) any incidents of disorder; 
e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons; 
f) any refusal of the sale of alcohol; and 
g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
32.  Whenever there is a queue outside the premises, it shall be supervised by a minimum of one 

door supervisor wearing a company branded uniform which will incorporate an element of 'hi vis' 
and displaying their SIA Licence.' 

 
33. The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage and/or private carriage 

firm to provide transport for customers, with contact numbers made  readily available to 
customers who will be encouraged to use such services. 

 
34. The premises licence shall not be transferrable save to subsidiaries or group companies of Hard 

Rock Café (UK) Limited. 
 
35. Notwithstanding condition 37, alcohol may be supplied and consumed immediately prior or post 

their meal at the premises in the bar area (designated on the plan), by up to a maximum at any 
one time, of 42 persons. 

 
 
36. The Premises shall only operate as a restaurant: 
 
 

a) in which customers are shown to their table; 
b) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only; 
c) which  provide  food  in  the  form of  substantial  table  meals  that  are  prepared  on  the 

Premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery; 
d) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption; 
e) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23:00; and 

page 28



f) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by persons 
who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there, and 
provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking 
such meals. 

 
37.  Licensable activities and the consumption of alcohol shall only be carried on in the basement of 

the premises. 
 
38. The licensee shall operate a written dispersal policy for a period of 45 minutes before the 

premises closes on any given night.  All staff shall receive training and refresher training in the 
policy.  A copy of the most recent version of the policy shall be retained on the premises at all 
times and shall be produced for immediate inspection at the request of any licensing inspector or 
police officer. 

page 29



Annex 4 – Plans 
 

 

 

  

page 30



 

City of Westminster 
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part B 

WARD: St James's 
UPRN: 010033548628 

Premises licence 
summary 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 

 
Premises licence number: 
 

 
19/05762/LIPDPS 

 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Hard Rock Cafe 
Criterion Building 
225-229 Piccadilly 
London 
W1J 9HR 
 

Telephone Number: Not Supplied 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Performance of Live Music 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Performance of Live Music 
 Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 01:00  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00  
 
Playing of Recorded Music 
 Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 01:00  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 02:00  
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Sunday to Thursday: 23:00 to 01:00  
 Friday to Saturday: 23:00 to 02:00  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 00:30  
 Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30  
 
Non-standard Timings: From the end of permitted hours on new years eve until the start of permitted 
hours of new years day. 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 

page 31



 
Sunday to Thursday: 10:00 to 01:30 
Friday to Saturday: 10:00 to 02:30 
 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption on the Premises. 
 

 

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 
 
Hard Rock Cafe (UK) Limited 
Cannon Place 
78 Cannon Street 
London 
EC4N 6AF 
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 
 
01924059 
 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of 
alcohol: 
 
Name: Desmond Addis 
 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 
 
Restricted 
 

 
 
 
Date:   1 July 2019 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Angela Seaward on behalf of the Director - Public Protection 
and Licensing.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

page 32



 

Application Details of 
Application 

Date Determined Decision 

 
17/04470/LIPN 

Application for a New 
Premises Licence  

29 June 2017 Granted at Licensing 
Sub-Committee 

 
17/10437/LIPCH 

Change of Premises 
Licence Holder 
Details  

5 March 2018 Granted under 
delegated authority 

 
19/04971/LIPV 

Application to Vary 
the Premises Licence  

17 June 2019 Granted under 
delegated authority 

 
19/05762/LIPDPS 

Application to vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

1 July 2019 Granted under 
delegated authority 

 
There is no appeal history for the premises.  

page 33



 
Appendix 4 

 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the Licensing 
Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant the licence 
subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or proposed 
as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority or an 
interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing service 
but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and have not 
necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which 
the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 34



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or 

in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, 
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of 
drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in 

advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to 

customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which 

is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available. 
 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 
or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  For 

page 35



premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
 

P = D+(DxV) 
 

Where - 
  

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    alcohol 

under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall 
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest 
penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies 
of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on 
the second day. 

 
 
 
 

page 36



Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
9. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team.  All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition.  The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises.  All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.  
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.   

 
10. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open.  This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police of authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
11. There shall be a personal licence holder on duty on the premises at all times when the 

premises are authorised to sell alcohol.   
 
12. A minimum of 2 SIA licensed door supervisors shall be on duty at the premises from 

18:00 until close, and a minimum of 4 door supervisors shall be on duty from 22:00. 
 
13. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level 

determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental 
Health Service, so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or 
businesses.  The operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by key or 
password to the satisfaction of officers from the Environmental Health Service and 
access shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence holder.  The limiter 
shall not be altered without prior agreement with the Environmental Health Services.  No 
alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should be effected without 
prior knowledge of an authorised Officer of the Environmental Health Service.  No 
additional sound generating equipment shall be used on the premises without being 
routed through the sound limiter device.   

 
14. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 
15. All outside tables and chairs shall be rendered unusable by 22:00 each day. 
 
16. There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the premises after 01:00 except for 

patrons permitted to temporarily leave the premises to smoke. 
 
17. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 

needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly. 
 
18. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 

to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.   
 
19. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 

all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents and businesses in the vicinity and advertised near the entrance doors of the 
premises in letters of at least two inches tall. 

 

page 37



20. There shall be no self-service of spirits on the premises, save for spirit mixtures less 
than 5.5% ABV. 

 
21. At all times there shall be promotion of non-alcoholic drinks. 
 
22. No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or 

placed in outside areas between 23:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day. 
 
23. The number of persons permitted in the licenced premises at any one time (including 

staff) shall not exceed 419 persons, reducing to 300 persons at midnight and 200 
persons at 01:00 hours.   

 
24. The last entry time to the premises on any given night shall be at least one hour before it 

closes. 
 
25. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 

available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises.  

 
26. Waiter or waitress service shall always be available in the licensed Premises. 
 
27. There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at all 

times. 
 
28. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 

where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the 
PASS Hologram. 

 
29. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include 

the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused 
the sale.  The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an 
authorised officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premise is open. 

 
30. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the police.  It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: 
a) all crimes reported to the venue 
b) All ejections of patrons 
c) Any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
d) Any incidents of disorder 
e) All seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
f) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol; and 
g) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service. 

 
31. Whenever there is a queue outside the premises, it shall be supervised by a minimum of 

one door supervisor wearing a company branded uniform which will incorporate an 
element of ‘hi vis’ and displaying their SIA licence.  No more than 40 persons are 
permitted to be in the queue outside the premises at any one time. 

  
32. The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage and/or private 

carriage firm to provide transport for customers, with contact numbers made readily 
available to customers who will be encouraged to use such services. 

 

page 38



33. The premises licence shall not be transferrable save to subsidiaries or group companies 
of Hard Rock Café (UK) Limited. 

 
34. Notwithstanding the condition below (MC66 restaurant condition), alcohol may be 

supplied and consumed in the basement bar area (designated on the plan in green 
hatching) by up to a maximum of 65 persons at any one time from 10:00 to midnight on 
Friday and Saturday, and from 10:00 to 23:00hrs on Monday to Thursday, and 10:00 to 
22:30hrs on Sunday.” 

 
35. The licensed premises in the basement shall only operate as a restaurant: 
 

(i) in which customers are shown to their table,  
(ii) Where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only, 
(iii) Which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on 

the premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable 
crockery, 

(iv) Which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption, 

(v) Which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23:00, and  
(vi) Where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 

persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table 
meals there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such 
persons is ancillary to taking such meals. 

 
36. Licensable activities and the consumption of alcohol shall only be carried on in the 

basement of the premises. 
 
37. The licensee shall operate a written dispersal policy for a period of 45 minutes before 

the premises closes on any given night.  All staff shall receive training and refresher 
training in the policy.  A copy of the most recent version of the policy shall be retained on 
the premises at all times and shall be produced for immediate inspection at the request 
of any licensing inspector or police officer. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service and agreed by the applicant so 
as to form part of the operating schedule: 
 
38.   At least 2 SIA door supervisors on duty at the premises shall be equipped with Body 

Worn Video, capable of recording audio and video in any light condition as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team.  All recordings shall 
be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of 
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised 
officer throughout the preceding 31 day period. BWV must be activated at an early stage 
during any incident involving conflict. 

 
 
  

page 39



Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority and agreed by the applicant so as to 
form part of the operating schedule: 
 
39.      No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until premises 19/05762/LIPDPS 

(or such other number subsequently issued for the premises) has been surrendered [and 
is incapable of resurrection]. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health 
 
None   

page 40



Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity    Appendix 5 
 

 

 
 
Resident Count: 33 
 

Licensed Premises within 75 metres of the Hard Rock Café, Criterion Building, 225-
229 Piccadilly, London, W1J 9HR 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

19/05762/LIPDPS Hard Rock Cafe 

Criterion 
Building 225-
229 
Piccadilly 
London W1J 
9HR Restaurant 

Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 02:30 
| Sunday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 01:30 

19/11154/LIPV 
Criterion 
Brasserie 

224 
Piccadilly 
London W1J 
9HP Restaurant 

Monday; 
10:00 - 05:00 
| Tuesday; 
10:00 - 05:00 
| Wednesday; 
10:00 - 05:00 
| Thursday; 
10:00 - 05:00 
| Friday; 10:00 
- 05:00 | 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 05:00 
| Sunday; 
12:00 - 05:00 

page 41



19/03453/LIPCH 
Criterion 
Theatre 

2 Jermyn 
Street 
London 
SW1Y 4XA Theatre 

Friday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 02:00 
| Sunday to 
Thursday; 
09:00 - 00:00 

18/12412/LIPN Not Recorded 

The London 
Pavillion 1 
Piccadilly 
London W1J 
0DA Not Recorded 

Monday to 
Sunday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

15/03210/LIPDPS 
Ripley's Believe 
It Or Not! 

The London 
Pavillion 1 
Piccadilly 
London W1J 
0DA 

Amusement 
Arcade 

Monday to 
Sunday; 
10:00 - 00:00 

19/14513/LIPT Not Recorded 

Ground Floor 
Unit G2 The 
London 
Pavillion 1 
Piccadilly 
London W1J 
0DA Not Recorded 

Monday; 
00:00 - XXXX 
| Tuesday; 
00:00 - XXXX 
| Wednesday; 
00:00 - XXXX 
| Thursday; 
00:00 - XXXX 
| Friday; 00:00 
- XXXX | 
Saturday; 
00:00 - XXXX 
| Sunday; 
00:00 - XXXX 

12/03809/LIPVM 
Aberdeen Steak 
House 

21-22 
Coventry 
Street 
London W1D 
7AE Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 01:00 
| Sunday; 
10:00 - 00:00 
| Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
10:00 - 01:00 

15/04802/LIPDPS Caffe Concerto 

45 
Haymarket 
London 
SW1Y 4SE Cafe 

Monday to 
Sunday; 
08:00 - 23:30 

20/00565/LIPCH 

Urban Tea 
Rooms St 
Jamess Unit 2A 

St James's 
Market 
London Cafe 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
07:00 - 00:00 
| Friday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 00:30 
| Sunday; 
09:00 - 23:00 

17/13227/LIPDPS 1 

St James's 
Market 
London Office 

Saturday to 
Sunday; 
00:00 - 00:00 

page 42



16/14122/LIPN Ikoyi 

St James's 
Market 
London Restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:00 
| Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 
| Sunday; 
12:00 - 23:00 

 

page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



page 45

Agenda Item 2



page 46



page 47



page 48



page 49



page 50



1) Increase the terminal hours for the provision of late-night refreshment from 00:30 hours to 
01:30 hours Monday to Saturday  
 
2. Increase the terminal hours for the supply of alcohol from 00:00 hours (midnight) to 01:00 
hours Monday to Saturday 
 
3. Remove condition 9 which reads  
There shall be no bar  

 
4. Remove conditions 12 & 13 which read: 
12. (i) Alcohol may be sold or supplied: 
(a) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year's Eve, 10:00 to 23:00 
(b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, 12:00 to 22:30 
(c) On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30 
(d) On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30 
(e) On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 10:00 to 23:00 
(f) On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12:00 to 22:30 
(g) On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours on the following day, 
midnight on 31st December). 
(ii) Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out above to persons 
taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises usually set apart for the service of 
such persons and for consumption by such a person in that part of the premises as an ancillary 
to his meal. For other purposes or in other parts of the premises the hours set out above shall 
continue to apply. 
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
(a) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on the 
premises; 
(b) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from the 
premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
(c) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on the 
premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was supplied for consumption as 
ancillary to the meals; 
(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person residing in the 
licensed premises; 
(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of 
the alcohol so ordered; 
(f) the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or club; 
(g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or 
supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised 
mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces; 
(h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there; 
(i) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a person 
residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the consumption of 
alcohol by persons so supplied; 
(j) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for the 
purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the consumption of liquor so 
supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or 
in charge of the business on the premises. 
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed as 
including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on the 
premises. 
13. No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the permitted 
hours unless one of the following applies: 
(a) He is the child of the holder of the premises licence. 
(b) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there. 
(c) He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the premises which 

page 51



page 52



 
1. MC66 (To replace conditions 10 and 11). 

The premises shall only operate as a restaurant  
(i) in which customers are shown to their table,  
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises 
and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery,  
(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption,  
(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and  
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by persons who 
are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there, and provided 
always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals.  
 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.  
 
2. MC01 

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum 
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be 
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV 
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all 
times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum 
period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available 
immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.  
 
3. MC02 
 
A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system 
shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be 
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with 
the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 
 
4. MC16  

 
There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after (23.00).  
 
5. MC17  

 
All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, and 
shall not be consumed on the premises. 
 
6. MC47 

 
A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where 
the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, 
such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram. 
 
7. MC49  

 
An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised 
officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and 
will record the following:  
(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  

page 53



page 54



been drinking at bars and nightclubs which goes directly against CIA policies. The applicant 
needs to demonstrate how they will promote the licensing objectives and not add to 
cumulative impact.  

 
• We also note the applicant has applied for the removal of condition 9, which states, ‘there 

shall be no bar.’  The application fails to provide any additional information as to the reason 
for the removal of this condition. The existing plan shows a bar counter with four seats, is the 
aim to create a new bar?   We would welcome further information on this point.  

 
• We are further surprised that the applicant feels a new terminal hour of 01:30 requires no 

further measures than a core hours licence. 
 
• Soho is at the forefront of the late-night economy in Westminster with its numerous 

restaurants, bars and entertainment establishments. The area is densely populated at night 
with people drinking on the street, creating loud levels of noise, causing disturbance and anti-
social behaviour.  In Soho between  01:00 - 02:30 there are 75 licensed premises for the 
sale of alcohol in Soho, *capacity for 49 of these premises is 13,371. This figure would 
have been higher as there were 15 licences where capacity was not recorded.   This 
application, if granted, will add an additional 01:30 licence to this already large number.  We 
believe this addition cannot be justified and will add to cumulative impact. (*capacity taken 
from premises licences). 

 
• Residents already suffer from late night noise, disturbance, anti-social behaviour and 

increased crime and disorder from the existing number of licensed premises in Soho.  In our 
view this application will fail to promote these objectives - see Licensing Objectives below. 

 
• This is the latest in a series of applications for significantly extended hours in Soho and are 

concerned this trend will continue as the result of the effect of COVID-19 on the hospitality 
industry.  Whilst we acknowledge the difficulties for restaurants, bars, cinemas and theatres, 
the Statement of  Licensing Policy 2016 remains the same, and we also maintain our position 
that there needs to be a balance between the late night economy and residential amenity.  
We consider this balance  has  for some time been in favour of late night premises which in 
turn has led to a deterioration and reduction in residential amenity.  The view of the Soho 
Society is that the way for Soho to thrive post COVID-19 is for rents and rates to fall rather 
than by extending licences.   

 
The Licensing Objectives  
In relation to the licensing objectives our concerns are as follows.  
 
Prevention of crime and disorder  
Criminal activity associated with the late-night economy / venues and large numbers of people 
on the streets results in high levels of serious crime. In Soho the majority of robberies take 
place late at night.  People are targeted as they leave late night venues which is evidenced by 
the crime figure.  Figures for Soho highlight a huge increase in robberies, * 111 robberies took 
place within the four-month period from Nov - Feb 2017/18, for the same period in 2018/19 the 
figure was 266 an increase of 140%. Figures for theft from person also show a similar increase 
401 for the same period in 2017/18 to 1,028 in 2018/19, a significant increase of 156%. 
(*Source; Police UK data).  
 
Criminal activity is not limited to robberies at night.  Drug dealers are also in the area targeting 
people.  Dealers are seen in this area daily, with an increase in numbers from the early evening 
until late into the night, and they openly approach people on a night out.  Drug dealers are in 
Soho late at night as there is a huge market for drugs which is linked to the number and late 
terminal hours of licensed venues.  
 
We are in no doubt that customers leaving a restaurant at 01:30 in this area will attract criminal 
elements and result in an increase in crime and disorder. 

page 55



page 56



page 57



page 58



Premises licence 19/16055/LIPVM                             Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 

page 59



 

page 60



 

page 61



 

page 62



 

page 63



 

page 64



 

page 65



 

page 66



 

 

page 67



 

page 68



 

page 69



Applicant Supporting Documents                     Appendix 2 
 
None 

 

page 70



                                                                                                    Appendix 3 

 
Licence & Appeal History  

 
 

 
Application 
 

 
Details of Application 

 
Date Determined 

 
Decision 

05/09176/LIPC Conversion 25.09.2005 Granted under 
delegated authority 

06/05835/WCCMAP Master licence 25.09.2005 Granted under 
delegated authority 

08/05198/LIPDPS Variation of designated 
premises supervisor 

13.06.2008 Granted under 
delegated authority 

09/09420/LIPDPS Variation of designated 
premises supervisor 

03.12.2009 Granted under 
delegated authority 

12/02294/LIPT Transfer of premises 
licence – FSN 
Restaurant Ltd to 
Piccadilly Spice Ltd  

02.04.2012 Granted under 
delegated authority 

12/09152/LIPT Transfer of premises 
licence – Piccadilly 
Spice Ltd to Wishbone 
Investments Ltd 

05.11.2012 Granted under 
delegated authority 

12/09136/LIPVM Minor variation of 
premises licence – 
change of layout 

05.11.2012 Granted under 
delegated authority 

12/09157/LIPDPS Variation of designated 
premises supervisor 

05.11.2012 Granted under 
delegated authority 

16/01944/LIPDPS Variation of designated 
premises supervisor 

03.03.2016 Granted under 
delegated authority 

16/07975/LIPDPS Variation of designated 
premises supervisor 

02.09.2016 Granted under 
delegated authority 

17/09664/LIPT Transfer of premises 
licence – Wishbone 
Investments Ltd to DB 
Denman Ltd 

20.09.2017 Granted under 
delegated authority 

17/09757/LIPDPS Variation of designated 
premises supervisor 

20.09.2017 Granted under 
delegated authority 

page 71



19/16055/LIPVM Minor variation of 
premises licence – 
change of layout 

16.12.2019 Granted under 
delegated authority 

 
Temporary Event Notices 
 

Temporary Event 
Notices 

Date of Event Activities/Hours Decision 

19/15523/LITENP 07.12.2019 Regulated 
entertainment, late 
night refreshment 
and supply of 
alcohol 
00:00 to 01:00 

Event permitted 

19/15903/LITENP 13.12.2019 to 
14.12,2019 

Regulated 
entertainment, late 
night refreshment 
and supply of 
alcohol 
00:00 to 01:00 

Event permitted 

 
There is no appeal history 

page 72



Appendix 4 
 

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Conditions: On Current Licence -  
 
Mandatory: 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 

page 73



(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  

page 74



For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 
 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
Conditions for the sale of alcohol 
 
9.  There shall be no bar.  

page 75



 
10.  The licence is to be used for restaurant purposes only.  
 
11.  The sale and supply and consumption of intoxicating liquor shall be restricted to persons 

partaking of a substantial meal on the premises.  
 

The applicant has agreed to replace conditions 9 and 10 with the model restaurant 
condition proposed below at condition 15 
 
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the premises 
by specified enactments 

 
Permitted hours for the Sale of Alcohol 

 
12.  (i)  Alcohol may be sold or supplied:       
 

(a)  On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year's Eve, 10:00 
to 23:00 

(b)  On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year's Eve, 12:00 to 22:30 
(c)  On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30 
(d)  On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30 
(e)  On New Year's Eve, except on a Sunday, 10:00 to 23:00 
(f)  On New Year's Eve on a Sunday, 12:00 to 22:30 
(g)  On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the 

start of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no permitted hours 
on the following day, midnight on 31st December). 

 
(ii)  Alcohol may be sold or supplied for one hour following the hours set out above to 

persons taking table meals in the premises in a part of the premises usually set 
apart for the service of such persons and for consumption by such a person in 
that part of the premises as an ancillary to his meal. For other purposes or in 
other parts of the premises the hours set out above shall continue to apply. 

 
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit: 

 
(a)  during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the 

alcohol on the premises; 
 

(b)  during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol 
from the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 

(c)  during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the 
alcohol on the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was 
supplied for consumption as ancillary to the meals; 

(d)  the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person 
residing in the licensed premises; 

(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the 
vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

(f)  the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or 
club; 

(g)  the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which 
the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of 
State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air 
forces; 

(h)  the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;  
(i)  the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a 

person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, 
or the consumption of  alcohol by persons so supplied;  

page 76



(j)  the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed 
there for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or 
the consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of 
their employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the business on the 
premises. 

 
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed 
as including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on 
the premises. 

 
13.  No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the 

permitted hours unless one of the following applies: 
 

(a)  He is the child of the holder of the premises licence. 
(b) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there. 
(c)  He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from  some part of the 

premises which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient 
means of access or egress. 

(d)  The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted and 
intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the licence 
is ancillary. 

 
In this condition "bar" includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the consumption 
of intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set 
apart for the service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an 
ancillary to their table meals.  

 
14.  The terminal hour for late night refreshment on New Year's Eve is extended to 05:00 on 

New Year's Day. 
 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
None 
 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
None 
 
Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service and agreed by the applicant so 
as to form part of the operating schedule 
 
15. The premises shall only operate as a restaurant  

(i) in which customers are shown to their table,  
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,  
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the 
premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery,  
(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate 
consumption,  
(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and  
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by 
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals 
there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary 
to taking such meals.  

 
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part 
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.  

 

page 77



16. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 

points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 

condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 

licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 

recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 

Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 

authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
17. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested. 

 
18. There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after (23.00).  
 
19. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only, 

and shall not be consumed on the premises. 

 

20. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises 

where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic 

identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the 

PASS Hologram. 

 
21. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 

of the incident and will record the following:  

(a) all crimes reported to the venue  
(b) all ejections of patrons  
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder  
(d) any incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons  
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment  
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency 
service 
 
 

Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health Service and agreed by the applicant 
so as to form part of the operating schedule 
 
22. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke, 

shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them  
 

23. There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23.00 hours.  
 
24. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 

available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises  

 
25. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall 

emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the 
premises which gives rise to a nuisance  

 
26. All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 23:00 hours, or at any time 

when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the immediate access and egress 
of persons  

 

page 78



27. All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 
minutes before the scheduled collection times  

 
28. During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 

measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business  

 

  

page 79



 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity                         Appendix 5 

 

 
Resident count: 58 

 
 

Licensed premises within 75m of 14 Denman Street, London, W1 
 

Licence Number Trading Name Address 
Premises 
Type Time Period 

11/11032/LIPDPS 
The Queen's 
Head 

15 Denman 
Street London 
W1D 7HN 

Public house 
or pub 
restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 10:00 
- 00:00 

20/02638/LIPT Masters Club 

Basement 12 - 
14 Denman 
Street London 
W1D 7HL 

Night clubs 
and discos 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 03:30 | 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 23:00 

page 80



16/09243/LIPV Kricket Soho 

12-14 Denman 
Street London 
W1D 7HJ Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 23:00 

19/07875/LIPT Jamies Italian 

17 Denman 
Street London 
W1D 7HW Restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
08:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
08:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 23:30 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:00 

17/09980/LIPVM Piccadilly Theatre 

Piccadilly 
Theatre Denman 
Street London 
W1D 7DY Theatre 

Monday to 
Friday; 09:00 - 
04:00 | 
Saturday to 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 03:00 

20/00217/LIPDPS Brasserie Zedel 

20 Sherwood 
Street London 
W1F 7ED Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 01:00 

10/03172/LIPN Kim's Mart 

24-25 Denman 
Street London 
W1D 7HS Shop (large) 

Monday to 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 22:00 

20/01636/LIPT Jewel Piccadilly 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 
And Part First 
Floor 4 - 6 
Glasshouse 
Street London 
W1B 5DQ Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 01:30 | 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 01:00 

18/12780/LIPDPS 
The Velvet 
Rooms 

Part First Floor 
To Fifth Floor 4 - 
6 Glasshouse 
Street London 
W1B 5DQ Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

20/03926/LIPCH 
Chilli Shaker 
Indian Cuisine 

4 Denman Street 
London W1D 
7HD Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

15/12078/LIPDPS Engawa 

2 Ham Yard 
London W1D 
7DT Restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 22:30 

page 81



19/13655/LIPDPS Ham Yard Hotel 

Ham Yard Hotel 
1 Ham Yard 
London W1D 
7DT 

Hotel, 4+ star 
or major 
chain 

Not Recorded; 
XXXX - XXXX 

06/05475/WCCMAP 
Taro Kaz 
Restaurant 

61 Brewer Street 
London W1F 
9UW Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 01:00 | 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 00:00 

19/09769/LIPCH Japan Centre 

19 Shaftesbury 
Avenue London 
W1D 7ED Shop 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
08:00 - 23:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 23:00 

18/16069/LIPDPS 

Glasshouse 
Stores Public 
House 

55 Brewer Street 
London W1F 
9UJ 

Public house 
or pub 
restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 23:00 

19/09766/LIPCH Shoryu Soho 

2-3 Denman 
Street London 
W1D 7HA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

19/15758/LIPT 
Mash Brewer 
Street Limited 

77 Brewer Street 
London W1F 
9ZN Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 11:30 
- 01:30 

 

page 82



            

 City of Westminster 

 

 

 

 
Item No:   

 

   

Date:  23 July 2020 

   

Licensing Ref No:  20/04235/LIPN - New Premises Licence 

   

Title of Report:  Mr Fogg’s Tavern 
58 St Martin's Lane 
London 
WC2N 4EA 

   

Report of:  Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

Wards involved:  St James's 

   

Policy context:  City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy  
 

   

Financial summary:  None 

   

Report Author:  Jessica Donovan 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

Contact details  Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: Jdonovan@westminster.gov.uk 

 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
Report 

page 83

Agenda Item 3



 
1. Application 

 

1-A Applicant and premises 
 

Application Type: New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003 
 

Application received date: 28 May 2020 

Applicant: St Martin's Lane Bar Ltd 

Premises: Mr Fogg’s Tavern 

Premises address: 58 St Martin's Lane 
London 
WC2N 4EA 
 

Ward: 
 

St James’s 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

West End 

Premises description: 
 

This is an application for a new premises licence which intends 
to operate as Lounge and Bar. 

Premises licence history: 
 

The premises have had the benefit of a licence, Licence 
number 19/07667/LIPDPS from 2005 which is still currently in 
place. A copy of the licence can be found at Appendix 3. The 
premises have also had the benefit of a number of Temporary 
Event Notices. 

Applicant submissions: There are submissions from the applicant at Appendix 2 of this 
report. 

 

1-B Proposed licensable activities and hours 
 

Films: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 12:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

All licensable activities shall be extended from the 
end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start 
of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 

 

Recorded Music: Indoors, outdoors or both Indoors 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 12:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

All licensable activities shall be extended from the 
end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start 
of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 

 

Late Night Refreshment: Indoors, outdoors or both Both 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 23:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

All licensable activities shall be extended from the 
end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start 
of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 

 

page 84



 

Sale by retail of alcohol On or off sales or both: 
 

Both 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 12:00 

End: 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 01:00 00:00 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

All licensable activities shall be extended from the 
end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start 
of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 

 

Hours premises are open to the public 
 

Day: Mon Tues Wed Thur Fri Sat Sun 
 

Start: 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 10:00 12:00 

End: 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 01:30 00:30 

Seasonal variations/ Non-
standard timings: 

All opening hours shall be extended from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of 
permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 

 

page 85



 
2. Representations 

 

2-A Responsible Authorities 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Licensing Authority 

Representative:  Angela Seaward 

Received:  
 

25 June 2020 

I write in relation to the application submitted for a new premises licence for 58 St Martin's Lane, 
London, WC2N 4EA 
 
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the 
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your 
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how 
the premises would promote the four Licensing Objectives:  
 

• Public Nuisance 

• Prevention of Crime & Disorder 

• Public Safety 

• Protection of children from harm 
 
The application seeks the following:  
 

• Films & Recorded Music  
Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 01:00 
Sunday                    12:00 to 00:00 
 

• Late Night Refreshment 
Monday to Saturday 23:00 to 01:00 
Sunday                    23:00 to 00:00 
 

• Supply of Alcohol On Premises 
Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 01:00 
Sunday                    12:00 to 00:00 
 

• Opening Hours to Public 
Monday to Saturday 10:00 to 01:30 
Sunday                    12:00 to 00:30 
 

The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area and as such various 
policy points must be considered, namely CIP1, HRS1 and PB2.  
 
At present, the operating hours applied for licensable activities currently fall outside of 
Westminster’s core hours. Paragraph 2.3.2  states that Policy HRS1 is not a policy to refuse 
applications for hours longer than the core hours and consideration will in all cases be given to 
the individual merits of an application. Where a proposal is made to operate outside these core 
hours each application will be considered on its merits against the criteria as set out in 
paragraph (ii) that applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this policy will 
be considered on their merits, subject to other polices stated within the Westminster licensing 
policy. 
 
Supply of Alcohol On the Premises 
Monday to Thursday 10:00 to 23:30 
Friday to Saturday 10:00 to 00:00 

page 86



Sunday 12:00 to 22:30  
 
Other Licensable activities 
Monday to Thursday 09:00 to 23:30 
Friday to Saturday 09:00 to 00:00 
Sunday: 09:00 to 22:30 
 
It is the intention to generally grant licences or variations to licences where the hours when 
customers are permitted to be on the premises are within the ‘core hours’ as set out in Policy 
HRS1, therefore the licensing authority would encourage the applicant too consider reducing 
the licensable activities to be within these hours.   
 
The premises intends to operate as a Lounge wine bar and with no ancillary use so will be 
considered under policy PB2. It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under 
Policy HRS1. Paragraph 2.5.23 advises that the licensing authority considers the grant of 
variations and new licences for pubs and bars in the cumulative impact area should be limited to 
exceptional circumstances. 
 
The licensing authority notes the proposed condition 18 which states ‘On the first floor, the 
Service of alcohol shall only be by waiter/waitress service’. paragraph 1.3 advices that the 
council wishes to discourage drunkenness and to encourage the provision of more seating in 
premises which serve alcohol for people to sit and enjoy a drink and order food by table service, 
in place of open bar space which caters for high volume vertical drinking. Therefore the 
licensing authority encourages the applicant to provide further submissions on how they intend 
to operate the ground floor and detail how their operation is exception to a policy that is to 
refuse. 
 
Currently the premises benefits from a premises licence number 19/07667/LIPDPS, the 
licensing authority encourage the applicant to consider model condition 62, which reads; 
 

• No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until premises licence 
19/07667/LIPDPS (or such other number subsequently issued for the premises) has 
been surrendered [and is incapable of resurrection]. 

 
Currently the current premises licence is within Westminster’s core hours for the ground floor 
and therefore the licensing authority encourage the applicant to provide further submission on 
how the increase to hours will not be contrary to policy. 

 

The Licensing Authority looks forward to receiving further submissions from the applicant in due 
course and it will be for the Licensing Sub-Committee to determine whether the applicant has 
demonstrated any exceptional circumstances that would allow to depart from policy. 

 

Please accept this as a formal representation. 
 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Environmental Health Service 

Representative: Maxwell Owusu Koduah 
 

Received: 
 

15 June 2020 

I refer to the application for a new Premises Licence number for the above-mentioned premises.  
The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact area.  I have considered the 
information that you have provided within and accompanying this application.  I have also 
considered the application in line with the relevant policies within the Councils Statement of 

page 87



Licensing Policy dated January 2016.   
 
The applicant is seeking to: 
 
1. Exhibition of films “indoors” at the following times  
Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:00 hours  
Sunday:  12:00 to 00:00 hours  
New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
2. Playing of recorded music “indoors” at the following times 
Monday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:00 hours  
Sunday:  12:00 to 00:00 hours  
New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
3. Provide late night refreshment “indoors & outdoors” at the following times: 
Monday to Saturday   23:00 to 01:00 hours  
Sundays:   23:00 to 00:00 hours  
New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
4. Supply of alcohol for consumption “on & off” the premises at the following times 
Monday to Saturday   10:00 to 01:00 hours  
Sundays:   12:00 to 00:00 hours  
New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours on New Year’s Day. 
 
Following consideration of the application and how it may affect the Licensing 
Objectives and meeting the requirements of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy I 
wish to make the following representation: 
 
The hours requested to exhibit films may have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public 
Nuisance within the West End Cumulative Impact area 
 
The hours requested to play recorded music may cause an increase in Public Nuisance within 
the West End Cumulative Impact area 
 
The provision of late-night refreshment and the hours requested may have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance may affect Public Safety within the West End 
Cumulative Impact area 
 
The supply of alcohol and the hours requested to supply alcohol may have the likely effect of 
causing an increase in Public Nuisance may affect Public Safety within the West End 
Cumulative Impact area 
 
It is my view that there is insufficient information to address the concerns of Environmental 
Health and the granting of this application as presented would have the likely effect of causing 
an increase in Public Nuisance and may affect Public Safety within the area 
 
Applicant is asked to contact the undersigned for further discussion and following this, additional 
conditions may be recommended by Environmental Health to support the licensing objectives 
Prevention of Public Nuisance and Public Safety 
 
Please contact me if you wish to discuss this further. 

Responsible 
Authority: 

Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn 14 July 2020) 

Representative: PC Brian Hunter 
 

Received: 
 

16 June 2020 

page 88



I am in receipt of the above application and its attached operating schedule of proposed 
conditions, We the Metropolitan Police as a responsible authority are making a representation 
against it 
 
The venue is situated within the Cumulative Impact Area.  It is our believe that if granted the 
application would undermine the Licensing Objectives in relation to the prevention of crime and 
disorder. 
 
The hours requested are outside policy, and some of the conditions proposed are not the model 
conditions, for clarity I have listed below the conditions we would like placed onto the premises 
Licence should it be granted, should these be agreed I may be in a position to withdraw my 
representation. 
 
 

• The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 

• A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 

• A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 

• An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  
 

• There shall be a minimum of (2) SIA licensed door supervisors after 9pm until 30 mins 
past close on Thursday, Friday and Saturday.  At all other times the management must 
complete a written risk assessment to be kept at the venue and made available on 
request of Police or authorised officials from Westminster City Council. 

 

• All staff engaged outside the entrance to the premises, or supervising or controlling 
queues, shall wear high visibility yellow jackets or vests.  

 
I look forward to your response in due course. 
 
Following agreement of additional conditions, the Metropolitan Police withdrew their 
representation on 14 July 2020 

 

page 89



 

2-B Other Persons 
 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

24 June 2020 

The  objects to this application as it will add to public nuisance because for the later 
hours. 
 
This is a new application which would have the effect of extending the licence of these premises 
so that the sale of alcohol is permitted to 01:00 Monday to Saturday and 00:00 on Sunday with 
the premises closing 30 minutes later. It also permits recorded music, films and LNR to the 
same times.  
 
The current licence for the premises allows the sale of alcohol to core hours on the ground floor 
and basement and 00:00 on the 1st floor expect Sundays, which is 23:30.  
 
The existing Licence is a converted pre-LA2003 licence and doesn’t include Model Conditions. 
The applicant has proposed 27 model conditions to be included in the Licence.  
 
The  view that if this licence is granted as applied for then it will add to Public Nuisance 
and Crime and Disorder both directly and by adding to the issues already present in the 
Cumulative Impact Special Policy Area.  
 
The Applicant has previously applied for these hours for the 1st floor of the premises only. The 

 view was that with some additional conditions this would be acceptable as the number 
of customers is limited and the sale would be by table service to seated customers only with a 
last entry time of midnight. However the Licensing Committee refused the application. The 
applicant is now asking that the whole premises is able to operate to this time and that whilst 
they offer a seated customer condition on the 1st floor no such condition is offered in the 
remainder of the premises.  
 
The ground floor and basement of this premise is a pub operating under a converted pub 
licence. There is no requirement that customers are seated. The sale of alcohol is for 
consumption on and off the premises. Alcohol does not need to be ancillary to food and there is 
no requirement for door supervision other than one proposed to apply only on Thursday to 
Saturday nights, even though the whole premises is proposed to be able to remain open until 
01:30 on all other nights of the week. We do not believe that a pub can be expected to operate 
until 01:30 without having an impact on residents in the vicinity through the generation of public 
nuisance.  
 
With regard to the first floor our view is, as before, the extended hours are acceptable with a few 
additional conditions to those offered in the application:  
 
Last entry to the 1st floor should be 00:00  
There should be no external queue for entry after 17:00  
 
For the ground floor our view is that the request to extend the time beyond Core Hours is not 
acceptable. Whilst we recognise that the applicant is an experienced and well regarded 
operator of the premises this alone is not sufficient to justify this substantial extension to the 
hours for the sale of alcohol.  
 

page 90



If despite this the Licensing Panel is inclined to grant some or all of the requested additional 
period for the ground floor and basement we would ask for the following conditions to be 
included on the Licence. 
  
1. No off-sales are permitted after 23:00  
2. After 23:00 customers are only permitted to go outside to smoke and may not take drinks with 
them.  
3. After 23:30 alcohol may only be sold for consumption by seated customers  
4. The licence only has effect whilst the premises are trading as “"olde-worlde" style Victorian 
tavern with welcoming publicans and friendly waiters and waitresses unspoilt by modernity.” - 
This is description given in the previous application.  
 
We wish to be clear that are position remains that the extension of hours on the ground floor 
should be refused. We are offering these additional conditions as a way of mitigating some, but 
not all, of the impact of any extension of hours on the ground floor, should the panel be minded 
to grant this.  
 
We hope that this representation is clear and ask that you advise us well in advance of any 
meeting at which this application will be discussed. 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association:  
 

 
 

Status: Valid In support or opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

21 June 2020 

I object to the proposal to extend the opening hours beyond the current permitted hours which 
conform to the Council's very welcome "core hours" policy.  It took a long time to establish that 
policy which has made a great difference to improve the lives of local residents.  
 
Large number of local residents. 
 
I have been surprised (during the clapping and banging on pans on previous Thursdays to 
express support and gratitude to NHS workers) by the large number of residents now living in 

.    I had not realised just how much 
residential accommodation there has been developed during recent years.  

 Charing Cross Mansions stretch through from Charing Cross Road along both sides of 
Cecil Court (and also along St. Martin's Court in the case of Charing Cross Mansions).  Flats 
face immediately opposite Mr. Fogg's Tavern. There are residents in Goodwin's Court and 
Talbot House and above the Salisbury public house and above offices on both sides of St. 
Martin's Lane and in New Row.   
 
 Existing problems tolerable but change would be unacceptable. 
 
 Mr.Fogg's Tavern is generally a well-run public house.  One incident about a year ago there 
was a very noisy disco with a DJ who used many vulgar swear words which were audible in my 
flat.  Fortunately this only happened once. However, their smoking policy Condition 19, 
apparently permits smokers to take their drinks into the street when they leave the premises to 
smoke.  The behaviour of smoker/drinkers can be noisy and boisterous. So long as the present 
opening hours are maintained I can live with the disturbance knowing it will not last long and I 
can get some sleep. 
 
Likely early morning disturbance as customers leave the premises.  
 
Condition 19 in the application Dispersal can only control behaviour in the immediate vicinity of 

page 91



the premises. It cannot control boisterous (and anti-social) behaviour as people walk to all night 
buses in Charing Cross and to late night tube trains at Leicester Square.  The proposed 
condition on restricting delivery hours is most welcome - if it is enforced.  
 
Any breach of current policy control will have a "domino" effect. 
 
My fear is that if the "core hours" are breached in this application then other licensed premises 
(of which there are several in St. Martin's Lane and surrounding streets) will make similar 
applications and it would be commercially unfair to deny them.  Allow one extension and the 
whole "core hours" policy will be finished. 
 
Attempt to compensate for commercial difficulties following pandemic. 
 
 I  expect that many businesses are in difficulties following the restrictions in trade during the 
covid-19 virus pandemic. It was inevitable that they would wish to extend their trading hours to 
compensate for recent loss of profits.  I am sympathetic to their problems but the current 
proposal is not acceptable.   A temporary permission for tables and chairs outside the premises 
might be acceptable but the pavements outside Mr. Fogg's are too narrow and motorised street 
traffic is busy at all times. 
 
A final plea to maintain the current control. 
 
Balancing the interests of local businesses and local residents is a difficult choice for the 
licensing authorities.  The "core hours" policy was courageous and made a welcome difference.  
I hope that the present situation will be preserved. 

Name:  

Address and/or Residents Association  
 

 
 

Status: Valid In support of opposed: Opposed 

Received:  
 

16 June 2020 

I support extending the hours for Mr. Phoggs Tavern for recorded music and films and the sale 
of alcohol / refreshments, BUT only until 12 midnight on Sundays through Thursday evenings 
(1am is okay for Fridays and Saturdays). 
 
St. Martins Lane and New Row have numerous residents . The noise 
from people departing the tavern at 1am will impact residents as sounds echo between the tall 
buildings. As a city dweller, we expect a degree of noise but would like to limit this during the 
week where people have to work the next day. 

 

page 92



 
3. Policy & Guidance 

 

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply: 
 

Policy CIP1 applies (i) It is the Licensing Authority's policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food premises, 
and premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than 
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative 
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must demonstrate 
that they will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact 
Areas. 

Policy HRS1 applies (i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this 
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to 
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy. 

(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this 
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant 
policies. 

For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the 
premises: 

Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30 

Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight 

Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight 

Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30 

For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the 
premises: 

Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00 

Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30 

For premises for the provision of other licensable activities: 

Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30 

Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight 

Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight 

Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30 

 

Policy PB2 applies It is the Licensing Authority's policy to refuse applications in the 
Cumulative Impact Areas other than applications to vary hours 
within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1. 

 

page 93



 
4.  Equality Implications  
  

The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to  its public 
sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In summary, section 149 
provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to 
the need to:   

  
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and   
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.   

  
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as 
age, disability, gender reassignment, Marriages and Civil Partnerships, pregnancy and 
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation. 

 
 
5. Appendices 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Premises plans 

Appendix 2 
 

Applicant supporting documents  

Appendix 3 
 

Current premises licence and premises history 
 

Appendix 4 
 

Proposed conditions 

Appendix 5 Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity 
 

 

Report author: Jessica Donovan 
Senior Licensing Officer 

Contact: Telephone: 020 7641 6500 
Email: Jdonovan@westminster.gov.uk 
 

 

page 94



 

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers please contact the report author. 
 

Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

1 Licensing Act 2003 N/A 
 

2 City of Westminster Statement of Licensing  
Policy  

7 January 2016 

3 Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of  
the Licensing Act 2003  

April 2018 

4 Licensing Authority representation 25 June 2020 

5 Environmental Health Service representation 15 June 2020 

6 Metropolitan Police representation (Withdrawn 14 
July 2020) 

16 June 2020 

7 Resident representation 1 24 June 2020 

8 Resident representation 2 21 June 2020 

9 Resident representation 3 16 June 2020 

 

page 95



Premises Plans          Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 

page 96



 
 
 
 

page 97



 

page 98



 
Applicant Supporting Documents        Appendix 2 
 

 

page 99



 

 

page 100



 

page 101



 

 

page 102



 

 

page 103



 

 

page 104



 
 

 

page 105



 

 

page 106



 

 
 

page 107



 

 

page 108



 

page 109



 

 
 

page 110



 

 
 

page 111



 

 
 

page 112



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 113



 

 
 
 
 

page 114



 

 
 
 
 

page 115



 

 
 

page 116



 
 
 
 
 
 

page 117



 

 
 
 
 

page 118



 

page 119



 

 

page 120



 

 
 

page 121



 
Premises Licence         Appendix 3 
 

 
City of Westminster 

64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part A 

WARD: St James's 
UPRN: 010033547527 

Premises licence 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 

 
Premises licence 
number: 
 

 
19/07667/LIPDPS 

 
Original Reference:  
 

 
05/04864/LIPCV 

 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Mr Foggs Tavern 
58 St Martin's Lane 
London 
WC2N 4E 

Telephone Number: 020 7581 3992 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 

  

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Exhibition of a Film 
Indoor Sporting Event 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for 
consideration and with a view to profit 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 

  

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Exhibition of a Film      
 Monday to Thursday:                                 10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                 10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                             12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:          12:00 to 00:00  
 
Indoor Sporting Event 
 Monday to Thursday:                                  10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                  10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                              12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:           12:00 to 00:00  
 
Playing of Recorded Music                                   Unrestricted 

page 122



 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Sunday to Friday:                                     23:00 to 00:30 (First Floor) 
 Monday to Thursday:                                      23:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                      23:00 to 00:00  
 Saturday:                                                  23:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                                  23:00 to 00:00 (First Floor) 
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:               23:00 to 00:00  
 
Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like 
kind for consideration and with a view to profit             Unrestricted 
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Monday to Saturday:                                        10:00 to 00:00 (First Floor) 
 Monday to Thursday:                                        10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                        10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                                    12:00 to 22:30  
 Sunday:                                                    12:00 to 23:30 (First Floor) 
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:                 12:00 to 00:00  

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Saturday:                                                     10:00 to 00:30 
Monday to Thursday:                                                     10:00 to 23:30 
Friday to Saturday:                                                     10:00 to 00:00 
Sunday:                                                                 12:00 to 22:50 
Sunday:                                                                 12:00 to 00:00 
Sundays before Bank Holidays:                              12:00 to 00:00 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises. 

 
Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder 
of premises licence: 
 
St Martin's Lane Bar Ltd 
1st Floor 
66 -71 Wilton Road 
London 
SW1V 1DE 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
9286688 

  

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the 
premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name:                           Germain Paul Herve Sebode 
 
Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address 
details of a designated premises supervisor. 

page 123



 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the 
supply of alcohol: 
                                      
Licence Number: 27290 
Licensing Authority: London Borough of Tower Hamlet 
 

 
Date:   05 February 2020 
 
This licence has been authorised by Ms Emanuela Meloyan on behalf of the Director - 
Public Protection and Licensing. 

page 124



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 
 

(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 
 

page 125



(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and either— 
(a)  a holographic mark, or 
(b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 
to customers in the following measures— 

   (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  
(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 
 

(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 
which is available to customers on the premises; and 

 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise 
licence in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any 
individual aged 18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated 
premises supervisor.  For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or 
officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that which enables him to 
prevent the supply of alcohol. 

 
8. (i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for 

consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted 
price. 

 
(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 

 
(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 

1979; 
 

(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 
 

P = D+(DxV) 
 

Where - 
  

(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     were 

charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the 

value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol; 
 

(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a premises licence - 

   
(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or 

page 126



(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under 
such a licence; 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 

(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from 
this paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph 
rounded up to the nearest penny. 

 
(iv).      (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from 
the permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a 
change to the rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 
days beginning on the second day. 

 
9. Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the film 

classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or recommended 
by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

 
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the 
premises by specified enactments. 

 
10. The terminal hour for late night refreshment on New Year's Eve is extended to 05:00 on 

New Year's Day. 
 

page 127



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 
 
 
11.   The number of persons permitted on the first floor of the premises at any one time 

(excluding staff) shall not exceed 50 persons. 
 
12.   The variation (14/04183/LIPV) will have no effect until the premises have been assessed 

as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team and this condition has 
been removed from the Licence. 

page 128



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 
 
 
13. Hours for licensable activities (sale and supply of alcohol, late night refreshment, films 

and indoor sporting events) shall be 10:00 to 23:30 Monday to Thursday, 10:00 to 12 
midnight Friday and Saturday, 12:00 noon to 22:30 on Sunday (12 noon to 12 midnight 
on Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays). 

 
14. Customers to be off the premises by 23:30 Monday to Thursday, 12:00 midnight on 

Friday, Saturday and Sundays immediately prior to a Bank Holiday, and by 22:50 on 
other Sundays. 

 
15. In addition to the above hours, the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is 

permitted to customers taking table meals on the First Floor until 12 midnight on Monday 
to Saturday and until 23:30 on Sunday, with 30 minutes drinking up time thereafter. 

 
16. The above restrictions do not prohibit: (Notes A - C First Floor Only) 
 

(a) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the 
alcohol on the premises; 

(b) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours, the taking of the alcohol from 
the premises unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 

(c) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the 
alcohol on the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was 
supplied for consumption as ancillary to the meals;   

(d) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person 
residing in the licensed premises; 

(e) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the 
vendor of the alcohol so ordered; 

(f) the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or 
club; 

(g) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which 
the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of 
State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air 
forces; 

(h) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;  
(i) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a 

person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, 
or the consumption of  alcohol by persons so supplied;  

(j) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed 
there for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or 
the consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of 
their employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the business on the 
premises. 

 
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed as 
including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on the 
premises. 
 
17.   Sale of Alcohol is permitted on New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New 

Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on the following day (or, if there are no 
permitted hours on the following day, 00.00 midnight on 31st December). 

 
18. Credit card sales to be allowed, subject to the proviso that customers are to be 

presented with an itemised bill. 
 

page 129



19. All persons under the age of 14 shall be accompanied at all times by an adult.  No 
person under 14 shall be allowed to remain in the bar area after 21:00 (21:30 if taking a 
table meal accompanied by an adult). 

page 130



 
Annex 4 – Plans 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 131



 
 

 
 
 
 

page 132



 
 
 

page 133



 

 
City of Westminster 

64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

Schedule 12 
Part B 

WARD: St James's 
UPRN: 010033547527 

Premises licence 
summary 

 
Regulation 33, 34 

 
 

  
Premises licence 
number: 
 

 
19/07667/LIPDPS 

 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises: 
 
Mr Foggs Tavern 
58 St Martin's Lane 
London 
WC2N 4EA 
 

Telephone Number: 020 7581 3992 

 

Where the licence is time limited, the dates: 
 
Not applicable 
 

  

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Exhibition of a Film 
Indoor Sporting Event 
Playing of Recorded Music 
Late Night Refreshment 
Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for 
consideration and with a view to profit 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 

 

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities: 
 
Exhibition of a Film      
 Monday to Thursday:                                     10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                     10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                                 12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:              12:00 to 00:00  
 
Indoor Sporting Event 
 Monday to Thursday:                                      10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                      10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                                  12:00 to 22:30  
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:               12:00 to 00:00  
 
Playing of Recorded Music                                       Unrestricted 

page 134



 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Sunday to Friday:                                        23:00 to 00:30 (First Floor) 
 Monday to Thursday:                                         23:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                        23:00 to 00:00  
 Saturday:                                                    23:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                                    23:00 to 00:00 (First Floor) 
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:                 23:00 to 00:00  
 
Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like 
kind for consideration and with a view to profit     Unrestricted 
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Monday to Saturday:                                        10:00 to 00:00 (First Floor) 
 Monday to Thursday:                                        10:00 to 23:30  
 Friday to Saturday:                                        10:00 to 00:00  
 Sunday:                                                    12:00 to 22:30  
 Sunday:                                                    12:00 to 23:30 (First Floor) 
 Sundays before Bank Holidays:                 12:00 to 00:00  
 

  

The opening hours of the premises: 
 
Monday to Saturday:                                                      10:00 to 00:30 
Monday to Thursday:                                                      10:00 to 23:30 
Friday to Saturday:                                                      10:00 to 00:00 
Sunday:                                                                  12:00 to 22:50 
Sunday:                                                                  12:00 to 00:00 
Sundays before Bank Holidays:                               12:00 to 00:00 
 

  

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: 
 
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises. 

  

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence: 
 
St Martin's Lane Bar Ltd 
1st Floor 
66 -71 Wilton Road 
London 
SW1V 1DE 

  

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where 
applicable) 
 
9286688 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for 
the supply of alcohol: 
 
Name: Germain Paul Herve Sebode 

 

page 135



 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 
 
Restricted 

 
 
Date:   05 February 2020 
 
 
This licence has been authorised by Ms Emanuela Meloyan on behalf of the Director - 
Public Protection and Licensing. 

page 136



 
Premises History 
 

Application Details of 
Application 

Date Determined Decision 

05/04864/LIPCV Conversion Licence 09.08.2005 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

05/12974/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

13.12.2005 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

06/10200/LIPT Transfer application 16.11.2006 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

06/08032/WCCMAP Master Licence 16.11.2006 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

09/09004/LIPVM Minor Variation 
application 

02.12.2009 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

11/01431/LIPRW Removal of works 
condition 

10.03.2011 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

11/09176/LIPT Transfer application 26.10.2011 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

11/10504/LIPT Transfer application 16.11.2011 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

11/11333/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

13.02.2012 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

14/02341/LIPT Transfer application 13.05.2014 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

14/04183/LIPV Variation application 10.07.2014 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

15/00629/LIPT Transfer application 31.03.2015 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

15/01507/LIPVM Minor Variation 
application 

20.03.2015 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

15/08663/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

23.10.2015 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

16/02281/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

31.03.2016 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

16/08551/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

29.09.2016 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

17/03026/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

29.06.2017 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

18/02495/LIPCH Change of licensee 
details 

06.03.2018 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

18/05796/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

04.06.2018 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

18/07471/LIPCHT Change of trading 
name 

24.06.2018 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

19/01117/LIPDPS Application to Vary 
the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

13.05.2019 Granted Under 
Delegated Authority 

19/07667/LIPDPS Application to Vary 05.02.2020 Granted Under 

page 137



the Designated 
Premises Supervisor 

Delegated Authority 

 

Application Details of 
Application 

Date Determined Decision 

18/02332/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

21.03.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/03766/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

16.04.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/03768/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

16.04.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/08620/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

31.07.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/13813/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

19.11.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/13814/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

19.11.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/13815/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

18.12.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/13817/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

02.01.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

18/14147/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

16.11.2018 Event refused 

18/14751/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

18.12.2018 Event allowed to 
proceed 

19/03075/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

10.06.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

19/03086/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

20.03.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

19/03222/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

10.06.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

19/08390/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

16.07.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

19/15587/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

03.12.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

19/15588/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

03.12.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

19/15591/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

02.12.2019 Event allowed to 
proceed 

20/02749/LITENP Temporary Event 
Notice 

19.03.2020 Event allowed to 
proceed 

 

page 138



 
 

Appendix 4 
 
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS 
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING  
 
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the 
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant 
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule. 
 
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations 
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating 
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions, 
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or 
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority 
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing 
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and 
have not necessarily been agreed 
 
Mandatory Conditions 
 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises 

supervisor in respect of this licence. 
 
2. No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor 

does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended. 
 
3. Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence. 
 
4.          (1)  The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry 

out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the 
premises. 

 
(2)  In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 

following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises— 

 
(a)  games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 

or encourage, individuals to; 
 

(i)  drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol 
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in 
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(ii)  drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or 
otherwise); 

 
(b)  provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 

discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in 
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective; 

 
(c)  provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 

or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 

page 139



less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing 
objective; 

 
(d)  selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 

or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner; 

 
 (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than 

where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
5.  The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonably available. 
 
6.          (1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that 

an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the 
sale or supply of alcohol. 

 
(2)  The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must 

ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with 
the age verification policy. 

 

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 

under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 

produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 

photograph, date of birth and either— 

 (a)  a holographic mark, or 

 (b)  an ultraviolet feature. 

 
7.  The responsible person must ensure that— 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on 

the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up 

in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available 

to customers in the following measures— 

  (i)  beer or cider: ½ pint;  

(ii)  gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 

   (iii)  still wine in a glass: 125 ml; 

 
(b)  these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material 

which is available to customers on the premises; and 
 
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of 

alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are 
available. 

 
A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence 
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.  
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol. 

page 140



 
8(i) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or 

off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price. 
 
8(ii) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above - 
 

(a)  "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 
1979; 

 
(b)  "permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula - 

 
P = D+(DxV) 

 
Where - 

  
(i) P is the permitted price, 
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty     

were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if 

the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the 
alcohol; 

 
(c)  "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 

force a premises licence - 
   

(i)  the holder of the premises licence, 
(ii)  the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, 

or 
(iii)  the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of    

alcohol under such a licence; 
 

(d)   "relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in 
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the 
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply 
in question; and 

 
(e)  "value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value 

Added Tax Act 1994. 
 
8(iii). Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this 

paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph 
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the 
nearest penny. 

 
8(iv).     (1)  Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by 

Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the 
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the 
rate of duty or value added tax. 

(2)  The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or 
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days 
beginning on the second day. 

 
9.  Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the film 

classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or recommended 
by this licensing authority as appropriate. 

 

page 141



10.  All persons guarding premises against unauthorised access or occupation or against 
outbreaks of disorder or against damage (door supervisors) must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

 
Conditions consistent with the operating schedule 
 
11.  The maximum number of persons permitted on the first floor of the premises at any one 

time shall not exceed 50 persons (excluding staff). 
 
12.   No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the 

structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 
 
13.  Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises 

building. 

14.  All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 
minutes before the scheduled collection times. 

15.  During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient 
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from 
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be 
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with 
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business. 

16.  Unless the premises are operating under the benefit of a Sexual Entertainment Venue 
licence there shall be no striptease, no nudity and all persons to be decently attired at all 
times. 

17. Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be 
available in all parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption 
on the premises. 

18. Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons 
to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly 

19. The licence holder shall enter into an agreement with a hackney carriage and/or private 
carriage firm to provide transport for customers, with contact numbers made readily 
available to customers who will be encouraged to use such services. 

20. The provision of films shall be incidental to other licensable activities and there shall be 
no cinema style showing of films. 

21. All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in finishing and 
furnishing should be either non-combustible or be of durably or inherently flame-retarded 
fabric 

22. The hours for licensable activities and opening times may be extended from the end of 
permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the beginning of the permitted hours on New 
Year's Day. 

23. The licence holder shall ensure that any queue to enter the premises which forms 
outside the premises is orderly and supervised so as to ensure that there is no public 
nuisance or obstruction to the public highway. A written queuing policy shall be in place 
and a kept for inspection at the premises. This policy will control people entering the 
premises so as to cause minimal impact on the area. 

24. On the first floor, the service of alcohol shall only be by waiter/waitress service. 

page 142



25. A dispersal policy shall be implemented which directs customers away from nearby 
residential premises as quickly and swiftly as possible. The Policy shall include the 
requirement that when the premises are open after Midnight an additional member of 
staff shall be available on the ground floor to ensure that this happens. The Licence 
Holder will consult with local residents and the Licensing Authority on this Policy and is 
required to meet their reasonable requirements. 

26. A Smoking policy shall be implemented which will ensure they cause minimal impact on 
the local area. Such policy shall be available for inspection. 

27. All windows shall be kept closed after 23.00 hours, or at any time when regulated 
entertainment takes place.      

28. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the 
needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.    

29. The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free 
of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the 
plans provided.    

30. All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key, 
code, card or similar means    

31. No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 8pm and 08:00am hours on the 
following day.    

32. A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level 
determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental 
Health Service, Premises Management so as to ensure that no noise nuisance is 
caused to local residents or businesses. The operational panel of the noise limiter shall 
then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of officers from the 
Environmental Health Service and access shall only be by persons authorised by the 
Premises Licence holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with 
the Environmental Health Service. No alteration or modification to any existing sound 
system(s) should be effected without prior knowledge of an authorised Officer of the 
Environmental Health Service. No additional sound generating equipment shall be used 
on the premises without being routed through the sound limiter device.    

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority 

33.  No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until premises licence 
19/07667/LIPDPS (or such other number subsequently issued for the premises) has 
been surrendered [and is incapable of resurrection]. 

 
Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health Service 
 
34.  There shall be no sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises after 23.00 hours.   
 
35.  All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only 

and shall not be consumed on the premises.  
 
36.  There shall be no sales of hot food or hot drink for consumption off the premises after 

23.00 hours. 
  
37.  There shall be no admittance or re-admittance to the premises after 23:30 hours 

Monday to Thursday; midnight on Friday & Saturday and 22:30 hours on Sunday. 
   

page 143



38.  A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be publicly available at 
all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made available to 
residents and businesses in the vicinity. 

  
39.  The premises licence holder shall ensure that any patrons drinking and/or smoking 

outside the premises do so in an orderly manner and are supervised by staff so as to 
ensure that there is no public nuisance or obstruction of the public highway.  

 
40. After 23:00 hours, patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the 

premises, e.g. to smoke, shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with 
them.    

 
41.  After 23:30 hours on Monday to Thursday; 00:00 hours (midnight) on Friday & Saturday 

and 22:30 hours on Sunday, the supply of alcohol on the 1st floor shall only be to a 
person seated taking a table meal there and for consumption by such a person as 
ancillary to their meal.   

 
Conditions proposed by the Metropolitan Police Service and agreed with the applicant so 
as to form part of the operating schedule. 
 
42. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the 

minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit 
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light 
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for 
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All 
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. 
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or 
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.  

 
43. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV 

system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff 
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent 
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.  

 
44. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only 

acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such 
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.  

 
45.  An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an 

authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours 
of the incident and will record the following: 

 
(a) all crimes reported to the venue 
(b) all ejections of patrons 
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder 
(d) any incidents of disorder 
(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons 
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment 
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol 
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

 
46. There shall be a minimum of (2) SIA licensed door supervisors after 10pm until 30 mins 

past close on Thursday, Friday and Saturday.  At all other times the management must 
complete a written risk assessment to be kept at the venue and made available on 
request of Police or authorised officials from Westminster City Council. 

 

page 144



47. All staff engaged outside the entrance to the premises, or supervising or controlling 
queues, shall wear high visibility yellow jackets or vests or distinctive uniform that is 
easily identifiable (eg butlers uniform/top hat/tails). SIA must wear the approved SIA 
registered identification. 

 
Conditions proposed by  
 
48.  After 23:30 alcohol may only be sold for consumption by seated customers.  
 
49.  The licence only has effect whilst the premises are trading as “"olde-worlde" style 

Victorian tavern with welcoming publicans and friendly waiters and waitresses unspoilt 
by modernity.  

 
50.  Last entry to the 1st floor should be 00:00  
 
51. There should be no external queue for entry after 17:00  
 
 
 
 

page 145



 
Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity    Appendix 5 
 
 

 
Resident Count: 140 
 

page 146



 

Licensed premises within 75 Metres of 58 St Martin's Lane, London, WC2N 4EA 

Licence Number Trading Name Address Premises Type Time Period 

19/07667/LIPDPS 
Mr Fogg’s 
Tavern 

58 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4EA 

Public house or 
pub restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 22:50 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:00 

19/01117/LIPDPS 
Mr Fogg's 
Tavern 

58 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4EA 

Public house or 
pub restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 22:50 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
12:00 - 00:00 

16/03143/LIPDPS 
Pepe 
Restaurant 

57 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4EA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
11:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
11:00 - 01:00 | 
Sunday; 11:00 
- 22:30 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
11:00 - 00:00 

18/11225/LIPCH 
Pepe 
Restaurant 

57 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4EA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
11:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 

page 147



11:00 - 01:00 | 
Sunday; 11:00 
- 22:30 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
11:00 - 00:00 

18/03513/LIPN Not Recorded 

Basement 
And Ground 
Floor Part 59 
St Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4JS Shop 

Monday to 
Sunday; 07:30 
- 20:00 

16/05363/LIPCH The Real Greek 

54 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4EA 

Public house or 
pub restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 23:00 

17/09446/LIPT Cafe Nuvo 

4 New Row 
London 
WC2N 4LH Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 23:00 

20/01056/LIPDPS 
The Salisbury 
Public House 

The 
Salisbury 
Public 
House 90 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4AP 

Public house or 
pub restaurant 

Monday to 
Wednesday; 
07:00 - 00:00 | 
Monday to 
Thursday; 
07:00 - 23:30 | 
Thursday; 
07:00 - 00:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 
07:00 - 01:00 | 
Sunday; 07:00 
- 23:30 | 
Sunday; 07:00 
- 22:30 

19/16019/LIPDPS 
Chipotle 
Mexican Grill 

92-93 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4AP Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 23:00 

19/11593/LIPDPS Cote 

Ground 
Floor 51 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4EA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

06/08049/WCCMAP 
Grand Indian 1 
Restaurant 

6 New Row 
London 
WC2N 4LH Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

page 148



17/02033/LIPVM 
Noel Coward 
Theatre 

Noel Coward 
Theatre 85-
89 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4AU Theatre 

Monday to 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 01:00 

19/09509/LIPDPS Not Recorded 

7 New Row 
London 
WC2N 4LH Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
08:00 - 23:00 | 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 22:30 

18/13918/LIPDPS The Alchemist 

Garrick 
House 63 - 
66 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4JS Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
09:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 09:00 
- 00:00 | 
Sundays 
before Bank 
Holidays; 
09:00 - 00:30 

19/02152/LIPDPS 
Browns 
Restaurant 

82-84 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4AG Restaurant 

Monday to 
Sunday; 08:00 
- 00:00 | 
Thursday to 
Saturday; 
08:00 - 01:30 | 
Sunday to 
Wednesday; 
08:00 - 00:30 

06/08897/WCCMAP 
Giovanni's 
Restaurant 

10 
Goodwin's 
Court 
London 
WC2N 4LL Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
18:00 - 00:30 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 15:00 | 
Sunday; 18:00 
- 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 15:00 

18/13283/LIPCH 
Giovanni's 
Restaurant 

10 
Goodwin's 
Court 
London 
WC2N 4LL Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 15:00 | 
Monday to 
Saturday; 
18:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 15:00 | 
Sunday; 18:00 
- 00:00 

14/06349/LICV Garrick Club 

15 Garrick 
Street 
London 
WC2E 9AY 

Club or 
institution 

Monday to 
Sunday; 07:00 
- 01:30 

19/14626/LIPVM McDonald's 

68 - 69 St 
Martin's 
Lane London Restaurant 

Friday to 
Saturday; 
05:00 - 01:00 | 

page 149



WC2N 4JS Sunday to 
Thursday; 
05:00 - 00:00 

19/00506/LIPDPS 
The Flying Pie, 
Ground Floor 

10 New Row 
London 
WC2N 4LH Not Recorded 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 23:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 22:30 

20/02257/LIPCH 
St Martins Lane 
Hotel 

Ground 
Floor 42 - 49 
St Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4ER 

Hotel, 4+ star or 
major chain 

Monday; 00:00 
- 00:00 | 
Tuesday; 
00:00 - 00:00 | 
Wednesday; 
00:00 - 00:00 | 
Thursday; 
00:00 - 00:00 | 
Friday; 00:00 - 
00:00 | 
Saturday; 
00:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 00:00 
- 00:00 

18/00776/LIPDPS J Sheekey 

28-32 St 
Martin's 
Court 
London 
WC2N 4AL Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 01:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

20/01977/LIPDPS Pizza Express 

Basement 
And Ground 
Floor 80 - 81 
St Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4AA 

Pub or pub 
restaurant with 
lodge 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

20/02380/LIPVM Simurgh 

17 Garrick 
Street 
London 
WC2E 9BL Restaurant 

Monday; 10:00 
- 00:30 | 
Tuesday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Wednesday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Friday; 10:00 - 
00:30 | 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

20/03303/LIPT Benitos Hat 

Ground 19 
New Row 
London 
WC2N 4LA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

20/00766/LIPCH Pizza Pilgrims 

23 Garrick 
Street 
London 
WC2E 9AX Restaurant 

Monday to 
Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Friday to 
Saturday; 

page 150



10:00 - 00:00 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 22:30 

19/01127/LIPVM Steak & Co 

Ground 
Floor 79 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4AA Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 23:00 

17/13829/LIPDPS Bella Italia 

70 St 
Martin's 
Lane London 
WC2N 4JS Restaurant 

Monday to 
Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 | 
Sunday; 12:00 
- 00:00 

 
 
 
 
 

page 151



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Licensing Applications for Determination
	1 Hard Rock Café, Criterion Building, 25-229 Piccadilly, London<, W1J 9HR
	2 Dirty Bones, Ground Floor, 4 Denman Street, London, W1D 7HJ
	3 Mr Fogg’s Tavern, 58 St Martin's Lane, London, WC2N 4EA



